
Meeting of:  Pennines Township Delegated and Funding 
Sub-Committee

Date: Wednesday, 13th February, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108BC) - Number One 

Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 5

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee held 24th October 2018. 

6.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - UNION ROAD, DEARNLEY 6 - 15

To consider objections to a Traffic Order 

7.  PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2018/19 16 - 74

Public Document Pack



To consider applications for funding from the Township’s Capital and 
Revenue Funds 

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee Members:

Councillor Bamford
Councillor Blundell
Councillor Davidson 
Councillor Dearnley 
Councillor Emsley 
Councillor Hartley 
Councillor Hussain 
Councillor Kelly
Councillor Mir (Chair) 
Councillor Paolucci 
Councillor Stott JP 
Councillor Taylor

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson 
Governance and Committee Services Floor 2, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 24th October 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Mir (In the Chair); Councillors Bamford, Davidson, 
Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Kelly, Paolucci, Stott and Taylor. 

OFFICERS:  T. Knight, C. Woods (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and 
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: five members of the public.

APOLOGIES
5 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Blundell and 
Hussain.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
6 Councillors Bamford, Davidson, Kelly and Stott declared personal 
interests in the submitted application from the MAD Theatre Company 
(PF/10/18). 

MINUTES
7 The Sub-Committee considered the Minutes of its previous meeting 
held 4th July 2018. Further to minute 3 (Pennine Township Funds 2018/19) a 
member requested an update on the funding application PTC/02/18, in 
respect of proposals for traffic calming on Wheelwright Drive. The Highways 
Officer reported that a revised costing for this work had now been received in 
the sum of £12,000, which was much lower than the previous estimate of 
£21,000. In this regard it was noted that determination of this project would be 
undertaken by the Chair and Vice Chair of the Sub-Committee – as previously 
stated at Minute 3 of the Sub-Committee’s meeting on 4th July 2018.

Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of Pennines Township Delegated and 
Funding Sub-Committee, held 4th July 2018, be approved as a correct record.  

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2018/19
8 The Sub-Committee considered a number of applications for funding 
that had been submitted by and on behalf of individuals and groups and for 
projects.

Alternatives considered: the Sub-Committee were asked to support or decline 
proposed schemes within the submitted report.

The Sub-Committee received representations from applicants who addressed 
Members in relation to their applications.

Resolved:
(1) The expenditure, commitments and balances of Pennines Township

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the 
submitted report, be noted;
(2) The decisions made under delegated authority, as detailed in Appendix 3 
of the submitted report, be noted;
(3) The Sub-Committee notes that the Townships and Communities Manager 
has assessed the proposed projects to be considered for funding against the 
criteria of the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and that 
any specific risks have been identified;
(4) The Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair 
and Vice Chair of this Sub-Committee, be given delegated authority to make 
appropriate decisions on any deferred projects;
(5) Applications for assistance from the Pennines Township Revenue and
Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report, were 
determined as follows:

Reference Application Decision
PF/01/18 Sheriff Street Garden 

Area
Defer to a future 
meeting of the Sub-
Committee

PF/08/18 World Scout Jamboree 
2019

Approve  an award of 
£1,500 to enable a 
scout to attend the 
World Scout Jamboree 
in West Virginia, USA, in 
August 2019 

PF/10/18 MADS Ellenroad 
Lighting

The Sub-Committee 
delegates authority to 
the Townships and 
Communities Manager, 
in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Sub-Committee, to 
determine this 
application for funding.

PTC/01/18 
and 
PTC/07/18

Residential Parking 
Provision

Defer consideration of 
this application until a 
meeting of the Sub-
Committee in the 
2019/2020 Municipal 
Year

PTC/08/18 Stubley Mill 
Road/Stubley Mill Lane 
– Access restrictions

Approve an award of 
£6,000 for the 
implementation of 
access restrictions at 
Stubley Mill 
Road/Stubley Mill Lane, 
Littleborough.

PTC/09/18 Shore Mount Waiting 
Restrictions 

Approve an award of 
£4,000 for the 
introduction of waiting 

Page 4



restrictions at the 
junction of Shore Mount 
and Shore Road, 
Littleborough.

PTC/10/18 Todmorden Road 
Waiting Restrictions

The application for 
funding be refused.

Reasons for resolution:
Management of the Pennines Township Fund was a function delegated to the 
Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee. Pennines 
Township Funds were allocated to various projects and schemes that would 
benefit the Township’s community and environment, and help to realise the 
Township’s priorities. The report also enabled the Sub-Committee to monitor 
and review the use of the Pennines Township Funds to ensure continued 
efficient and effective use of these Funds.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes.

Page 5



Report to Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Committee

Date of Meeting 13th February 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author Paul Wotton
Public Document Public

Objections to Traffic Order - Union Road, Dearnley

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

Proposed alterations to No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on the recently 
extended Union Road have been advertised and two objections were 
received.

This report explains the background to the proposal and comments upon the 
points made by the objectors to assist the Committee in coming to a decision 
whether to implement, and to what extent the Order may be introduced.

Recommendation
2.1

2.2

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.69) 
Order be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light of 
the objections received, which are in Appendix C of this report.

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be 
introduced to address parking issues which can obstruct the turning head 
situated at the end of the cul de sac, and also on the west side of the recently 
constructed section of Union Road to be consistent with the remainder of this 
highway.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

Copy of Statement of Reasons

Union Road, Dearnley is a cul-de-sac and non-strategic highway situated on 
the north side of Halifax Road A58. The junction is controlled by traffic signals 
together with the nearby junction of Halifax Road and Smithy Bridge Road.

Union Road serves mostly residential properties and is the vehicular access 
to St Andrews Primary School.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.2

It used to be one of the main accesses to the Birch Hill Hospital complex, 
where much of the south of its site has been redeveloped for housing, 
causing Union Road to be extended in a northerly direction by some 40 
metres, whilst remaining a cul-de-sac and having several new dwellings built 
at its northern end.

To ensure the efficient operation of Union Road, its northern end is a turning 
head to allow delivery and goods vehicles to turn and there have been 
instances of vehicles parking in it causing difficulties for goods vehicles which 
have hit and damaged some boundary fencing.

The 40 metres long extension of Union Road is 5.7 metres wide making it 1.0 
metre narrower than the older and longer original section, thus justifying 
restrictions to keep it free for traffic to use and to avoid unsafe turning 
manoeuvres such as using driveways or the school access which would pose 
a risk particularly to pedestrians and particularly school children.

All of the recently built properties have their own off-street parking provision.

On the east side of the original section of Union Road, there is no intention to 
alter either of the two marked unrestricted parking bays, the ‘School Keep 
Clear’ markings or the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions at its south end 
approaching the traffic signal controlled junction with Halifax Road.

There have been no recorded injury accidents in Union Road in the last 3 
years.

The proposals devised and advertised are intended to address the identified 
issues. The scheme plan forms Appendix A and the Notice of Intention fully 
describing the proposal is Appendix B.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

During the consultation period the Authority received 2 objections from 
residents of properties fronting onto the recently extended section of Union 
Road.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections 
submitted during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic 
Regulation Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is 
deemed non-strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with 
Functions of Township Committees Section 8.2.2. Committee has delegated 
power to confirm or abandon the proposals and the Order.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only 
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. 
The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care 
to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic 

Page 7



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.7.1

4.7.2

4.7.3

4.7.4

4.8

4.8.1

4.9

4.9.1

4.9.2

4.9.3

Management Act 2004 to maintain the safe and expeditious movement of 
traffic.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix C of this report. Their names and precise 
addresses have been redacted.

A further Order was advertised at the same time on Union Road to impose a 
20 miles per hour speed restriction on the recently extended length of 
highway. No objections were received and this Order has been introduced, 
although no changes were needed to the existing speed limit signing on 
Union Road.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could decide to amend or abandon the proposal.

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions and abandon the 
proposal then the identified issues with parked vehicles obstructing the 
turning head and indiscriminate parking on the recently constructed section 
of Union Road will not be addressed.

Due to the change in road layout the existing TRO needs amending to cover 
the full extent of Union Road and if this is not done, the northern section and 
replacement turning head arrangement will continue to experience 
indiscriminate parking and be liable to obstruction.

Failure to introduce an amendment order will leave an ambiguous situation 
describing a turning head on Union Road which no longer exists, and risk 
established restrictions becoming unenforceable.

General comments about the objections

The scheme can be separated into two sections as explained below.

Union Road turning head

Further to paragraph 3.1.4, a comment received from a Union Road resident 
explains their view of difficulties that parked vehicles can cause in the 
turning head, and cites observed issues for refuse and recycling collections, 
Ambulance and Fire vehicles, all having had difficulty turning and often 
having to drive on the footway; a situation which can arise at any time of 
day.

The most awkward situations described are instances of a refuse vehicle 
having to reverse a considerable distance along Union Road when 
prevented from turning, and a heated argument taking place with a driver 
who would not move their parked vehicle for the refuse vehicle to turn.

It is assumed that the incident described in the previous paragraph was 
resolved by the vehicle turning round in an unsatisfactory manner using a 

Page 8



4.10

4.10.1

4.10.2

4.10.3

4.10.4

private driveway or possibly the school access or entrance to the former 
Kilpatrick premises yard, all of which could have placed children at risk of 
injury particularly when Union Road is at its busiest at school start and finish 
times.

Union Road - west side

The original extent of Union Road has No Waiting At Any Time restrictions 
along the full length of its west side.

The new continuation of Union Road up to its turning head is 1 metre 
narrower in width and cannot accommodate parked vehicles on both sides 
of the street, hence the desire to continue the pattern of west side No 
Waiting At Any Time restriction for its entire length.

All homes built on the new section of Union Road have their own off-street 
parking provision of two spaces per dwelling and it should be noted that the 
only right the general public including residents has on the highway is a right 
of passage along it.

The restrictions proposed will create uniformity of parking with the rest of 
Union Road by preventing parking on the whole of its west side, assisting 
keeping the road open for traffic.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is estimated to be £4000 
and will be met by the Pennines Township Capital fund.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.1

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 
11th September 2018.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 
on 12th September 2018.

The objection period ran until 3rd October 2018.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

Page 9



8.

For Further Information Contact: Paul Wotton, , 
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 10



APPENDIX  A – Scheme plan as advertised

Page 11



APPENDIX  B – Notice of Intention

TRO Ref No H60/1270
BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)
(VARIOUS STREETS) (PENNINES TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)

(AMENDMENT) (NO. 69) ORDER

Union Road, Littleborough

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

 (1) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time
Union Road, Wardle & West Littleborough Ward
n(iii) the north easterly side from a point 191 metres north west of its junction with 

Halifax Road for a distance of 17 metres in a north westerly direction including 
the turning head

n(iv) the south westerly side from its junction with Halifax Road to a point 208 metres 
north west of its junction with Halifax Road including the turning head

n(v) the north west side of its turning head situated 208 metres north west of its 
junction with Halifax Road for its entire length

 (2) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No 1.1
No Waiting at Any Time
Union Road, Wardle & West Littleborough Ward
n(i) the north easterly side from a point 156 metres north west of its junction with 

Halifax Road to a point 169 metres north west of its junction with Halifax Road 
including the turning head

n(ii) the south westerly side from its junction with Halifax Road to a point 169 metres 
north west of its junction with Halifax Road including the turning head

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of road concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at may be inspected at Littleborough Library, Hare Hill Park, Hare Hill Road, 
Littleborough, OL15 9HE during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 3rd October 2018, quoting H60/1270.

Dated this 12th day of September 2018

Page 12



David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 13



APPENDIX C – Objections Received

Objector 1                 . 
     Union Road, Rochdale OL12 9QA

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject: No waiting H60/1270
Good Morning,

I am writing with regards to the No waiting at 
anytime proposition on Union Road, Wardle 
and West Littleborough Ward. 

Having taken into consideration my fellow 
neighbours I have an obligation to object the 
above subject. 

I live on the side of which the No waiting lines 
will be placed and after much consideration I 
feel this will hinder my family members 
visiting our property due to restricted parking. 
I do feel that we need to have some form of 
restrictions due to people parking 
inconsiderate towards others, however a 
permanent no waiting zone is the wrong 
solution. Maybe a parking permit for those 
that live on Union Road. The residents of the 
clock tower have their own car park however 
they are using Union Road to park which is 
causing the access of emergency vehicles 
and delivery vehicles to be restricted. 

As stated at this time I am objecting to the No 
waiting lines being placed outside my house. 

I have provided my contact telephone 
number should you need any more 
information -                 . .

Kindest regards

                .
     Union Road
        

All the recently built properties do have 
their own off street parking for two 
vehicles.
Other than in the turning head situated at 
its north end, the No Waiting At Any Time 
restrictions are proposed for just the west 
side of Union Road thus allowing parking 
on the opposite side providing they 
comply with the highway code. 
The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.
The section of Union Road under 
consideration is not wide enough to allow 
parking to take place on both sides of the 
road, being 1 metre narrower than the 
long established southern section of the 
road.
If vehicles were to park on both sides, 
they would either obstruct the passage of 
vehicles and/or be parked on the footway 
causing inconvenience or possible risk to 
pedestrians. 
A parking permit scheme would not 
prevent cars parking indiscriminately.
Introducing the proposed restrictions will 
cause some displacement of parked 
vehicles and make better use of the 
highway and ease access and turning 
issues.

Page 14



Objector 2                 . 
     Union Road, Rochdale OL12 9QA

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject: Objection - H60/1273 H60/1270

I write to raise an objection to the traffic order 
H60/1273 H60/1270 - Union road Dearnley.

I reside at number     , one of the new build 
properties at the top of the road referenced in 
your reasons document. It was me who 
originally approached councillor John Taylor 
with my concerns. 
I fear the proposals that have been outlined 
will do nothing for our current predicament. 
Ignoring parking in the turning head, which is 
an all year round problem, Issues only arise 
during school drop off/pick up hours, when 
driveways are blocked and double parking 
occurs. 
Whilst I agree your proposals will go some 
way to solving double parking issues, they 
will do nothing for the problem of blocking our 
driveway. In reality it will only make the 
problem worse.
I would like to suggest the counter proposal 
of   introducing limited hours restrictions 
during school hours with a single solid yellow 
line, with relevant signage. Whatever is 
implemented must be implemented on both 
sides of the street. If they are just on one 
side the problem will simply worsen for the 
other side. 
We are able to provide photo evidence if you 
require. I will forward these at the earliest 
opportunity

Regards
                .
     Union Road

This objector does acknowledge the need 
for restrictions in the turning head at the 
north end of Union Road (cul-de-sac).

Their concerns relate to the restrictions 
proposed for the west side of Union Road.

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

If implemented the proposed restrictions 
will improve operation of the turning head 
and regulate parking to take place just on 
the east side of Union Road.
If shorter duration restrictions are applied 
to target just school times, then vehicles 
will be displaced a considerable distance 
due to the presence of nearby established 
restrictions.

Due to Union Road being a cul de sac, it 
is important that the road is not obstructed 
by parked vehicles because it can only be 
reached from Halifax Road A58.

To address the concerns about parking, it 
could be possible to introduce a 9am to 
5pm restriction on the east side of Union 
Road to ensure driveways are not 
obstructed, however the principle of 
parking being banned on just its west side 
has been established for many years on 
the original section of Union Road.

Parking across a dropped kerb is an 
offence that can result in the issue of a 
Penalty Charge by a Civil Enforcement 
Officer.

Should the Committee be minded to 
introduce any form of part day restriction 
on Union Road, then this would require 
such proposals to be re-advertised.  

Page 15



Agenda Item

Report to Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee

Date of Meeting 13 February 2019
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Pennines Township Funds 2018/19

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Pennines Township Funds 2018/19 and enable the allocation 
of funds to proposed projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines 
Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in 
Appendix 3.

2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to 
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4 Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed 
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility 
for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any 
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5 The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make 
decisions on any deferred projects.

2.6 Members consider the proposed changes to the Pennines Township Fund 
Terms and Conditions 2018/19 in Appendix 5 and decide whether to accept 
the changes or not to the terms and conditions for Pennines Township 
revenue and capital funds for 2018/19.

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines 
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee.

3.2 Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of 
Pennines Township Funds 2018/19 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed 
spend for revenue funds is 50.59% and capital funds is 91.21%.

4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines 
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee to ensure that Members are 
aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  Members are 
asked to note the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since 
the last committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Pennines Township Funds 
2018/19.  Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer 
the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in 
Appendix 4.

4.4 To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2018/19, Members 
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any 
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the committee.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2018/19 (Appendix 5).

4.6 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Pennines Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2018/19 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Pennines Township Fund to ensure best use of available resources.

Page 17



5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be 
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

6.4 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council 
has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any 
changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide 
them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with them 
and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding. 
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a 
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their 
obligations under the Compact.

7. Consultation

7.1 Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee receives regular 
monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  Any proposal for funding 
requires support from at least one Member.  All proposals will to be consulted 
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 18



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2018/19           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2017/18) 64,197       34.26% 50.59%

Base Budget 2018/19 81,500       

Income from other funds/services 2018/19 -                

Budget Available 2018/19 145,697     

Budgets transferred to services/actuals 49,922       

Commitments 23,787       

Total Actual + Commitments 73,709       

Budget Remaining 2018/19 71,988       

Forecast Outturn 145,697     

Potential under/overspend 2018/19 -                

Funds

 Balance 

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19       

£ 

Projects Fund 44,456       64,500       -                     108,956     26,907           10,084         (4,702)         10,307         42,596     66,360      

Events Fund -                5,000         -                     5,000         5,000             -                  -                  -                  5,000      -                

Pennines Town Centres Fund 15,628       -                -                     15,628       857                9,143           -                  -                  10,000     5,628        

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund 400            3,000         -                     3,400         1,726             500              1,174           -                  3,400      -                

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund 3,385         3,000         -                     6,385         90                  2,060           -                  4,235           6,385      -                

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund 328            3,000         -                     3,328         800                -                  2,528           -                  3,328      -                

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund -                3,000         -                     3,000         -                    2,000           1,000           -                  3,000      -                

Total 64,197       81,500       -                     145,697     35,380           23,787         -                  14,542         73,709     71,988      

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 19



APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2018/19           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2017/18)            14,498 90.80% 91.21%

Base Budget 2018/19            77,600 

Income/Adjustments 2018/19           (27,160)

Budget Available 2018/19            64,938 

Budgets transferred to other services/actuals            58,964 

Commitments                 264 

Total Actual + Commitments            59,228 

Budget Remaining 2018/19              5,710 

Forecast Outturn            64,938 

Potential under/(over)spend 2018/19                      - 

Funds

 Balance b/f 

2017/18

£ 

 Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19       

£ 

Capital Fund          14,234          69,600           (27,160)        56,674              5,101                    -           (5,288)          51,151      50,964          5,710 

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund 264              2,000           -                     2,264         -                     264              2,000           -                  2,264      -                

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         -                     -                  -                  2,000           2,000      -                

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         264                -                  1,736           -                  2,000      -                

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         448                -                  1,552           -                  2,000      -                

Total          14,498          77,600           (27,160)        64,938              5,813               264                    -          53,151      59,228          5,710 

P
age 20



PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION

Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

PF/11/18 Littleborough 

Christmas tree picket 

fence

Supply and installation of a tanalised picket fence to surround the 

Christmas tree located in Littleborough town centre.

Littleborough 

Lakeside

£1,971.29 02 November 2018 Awarded £1,971.29 

from Projects Fund

PTC/02/18 Wheelwright Drive 

area traffic calming

Introduction of traffic calming and 20mph speed limit on roads in the 

Wheelwright Drive area consisting of two round topped speed humps 

and provision of 20mph zone and 20mph repeater signs, 

consultation and 20mph Traffic Regulation Order.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£12,000 05 November 2018 Awarded £12,000 

from Capital Fund

PCW/04/18 St Andrew's Church 

directional sign

Supply and installation of a directional sign to provide motorists and 

pedestrians with information about the location of St Andrew’s 

Church.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£300 12 November 2018 Awarded £300 from 

Ward Capital Fund

PF/10/18 MADS Ellenroad 

Lighting

MAD Theatre Company propose to establish a permanent set up for 

their productions with LED lamps for installation on a new lighting 

frame (to be installed in early October 2018 through a grant from the 

Foyle Foundation) in Ellenroad Engine Room.  These lights will also 

provide Ellenroad Trust with enhanced lighting to improve the 

museum experience, creation of better education and training 

facilities, and the continuing adaptation of the Engine House for 

dramatic performances.

Milnrow & 

Newhey

£3,500 21 November 2018 Awarded £3,500 

from Projects Fund

PTC/11/18 Shore Bus Terminus 

Planters

Supply and installation of two Promenade planters with soil and 

compost at the Shore Bus Terminus to be maintained by local 

residents.  One octagonal planter to be used for a Christmas tree to 

include the wording 'Shore' in gold lettering.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£1,553.49 28 November 2018 Awarded £1,553.49 

from Capital Fund

PF/13/18 Wardle Cenotaph 

gate repair and 

handrail

Repair of the gate to Wardle Cenotaph and installation of a handrail 

to improve access to the memorial.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£628.03 03 December 2018 Awarded £628.03 

from Projects Fund

PF/14/18 Shore Christmas 

Tree Lights

Provision of three sets of outdoor battery fairy lights operated on a 

timer for the Shore Christmas tree.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£49.97 05 December 2018 Awarded £49.97 

from Projects Fund

PF/12/18 Newhey and Firgrove 

Seasonal 

Improvements

Friends of Firgrove propose to enhance the shopping areas in 

Newhey and Firgrove with Christmas trees affixed to shop fronts 

during the festive period and hanging baskets/planters for seasonal 

planting displays.

Milnrow & 

Newhey

£2,159.65 07 December 2018 Awarded £2,159.65 

from Projects Fund

APPENDIX 3

Page 1 of 2

P
age 21



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

PF/17/18 Newhey Road litter 

bin relocation

Relocate an existing litter bin on Newhey Road, Milnrow Milnrow & 

Newhey

£198 18 January 2019 Awarded £198 from 

Projects Fund

Page 2 of 2

P
age 22



APPENDIX 4

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2018/19

Town Centres Fund 2018/19 available for allocation = £5,628

Pennines Township Town Centres Fund 2018/19 - Proposed projects for decision

Ref No Name of Project Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Littleborough 

Lakeside

Yes

Place

People

Prosperity

Littleborough Food 

& Drink Sub 

Committee

£1,885.64

Projects Fund 2018/19 available for allocation = £66,360

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2018/19 - Proposed projects for decision

Ref No Name of Project Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Milnrow & 

Newhey

Yes

Place

Sheriff Street 

Residents 

Association

£2,950

PTCF/01/18 Littleborough Food Festival 2019

Project 

Description

 Littleborough Food Festival aims to support and promote business in Littleborough by encouraging local shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs to participate in a community 

event together to attract visitors into Littleborough.  The Festival is planned for Saturday 8 June 2019 from 11am to 4pm on Hare Hill Road, Littleborough with musical 

entertainment, seating area and food and drink stalls.  A local chef will host cooking demonstrations in a mobile kitchen and children will have an opportunity to participate in 

cookery classes throughout the day.  (Application form providing information about the project at Appendix 4A)

Risk implication None

PF/01/18 Sheriff Street Garden Area

Project 

Description

Sheriff Street Residents Association propose to create an outside socialising area near their communal lounge with easy access to kitchen facilities.  The flagged area with 

pathway for ease of wheelchair access, benches and raised planters will provide a welcoming environment for the elderly residents and visitors for coffee mornings, monthly 

lunch club and functions. (Application form providing information about the project at Appendix 4B)  Application was deferred at Pennines Township Delegated & 

Funding Sub Committee on 4 July 2018 and 24 October 2018.

Risk implication None

Page 1 of 3

P
age 23



Pennines Township Projects Fund 2018/19 - Proposed projects for decision

Ref No Name of Project Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Milnrow & 

Newhey

Yes

Place

Environmental 

Management

£550

Milnrow & 

Newhey

Yes

Place

Milnrow Cricket 

Club

£4,500

Various Yes

Place

Pennines in Bloom £4,900

Various Yes

Place

Environmental 

Management

£7,480

Various Yes

Place

Environmental 

Management

£2,365

Littleborough 

Lakeside

Yes

Place

Environmental 

Management

£6,450

Project 

Description

Improvements to Hare Hill Park annual flower beds involving replacement of the four existing rectangles beds from the bandstand to water fountain.  Beds to be planted with 

structural foliage interest planting that will define the beds and provide a backdrop for annual bedding.  Four wood sculpture features to be installed. (Project brief at 

Appendix 4H)

Risk implication None

Project 

Description

Improve Pennines Township floral displays and landscaping at various sites consisting of gapping up planting at Albert Royds roundabout, replace plants at Dalton Avenue, 

top up planting in Milnrow Memorial Park, replenish planters in Littleborough, Milnrow and Newhey and renovate and install a heritage agricultural machine on Wardle 

Green.  (Project brief at Appendix 4G)

Risk implication None

PF/21/18 Hare Hill Park Flower Beds Revamp

PF/15/18 Dippy Dinosaur Garden

Project 

Description

Make permanent and expand the trial of flower seed areas on roadside verges.  Replace the annual flower seed mix on Wildhouse Lane with a perennial seed mix and 

create new perennial seed mix areas to replace grass plots along Birch Road to Wardle.  Proposed to use low growing and single species mix for visual impact where 

bordering road edge, and in other areas more general seed mix.  (Project brief at Appendix 4F)

Risk implication None

Project 

Description

Provision of summer bedding, herbaceous plants, trees and shrubs for landscaping/planting schemes to improve existing and create new horticultural displays across 

Pennines Township and support the Pennines in Bloom entry to the North West in Bloom Competition 2019 that rewards horticultural excellence, community involvement, 

environmental friendliness and sustainability. (Application form providing information about the project at Appendix 4E)

Risk implication None

PF/19/18 Pennines Grass Verges

Project 

Description

Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from the Natural History Museum is on a national tour and will be visiting the borough in 2020.  It is proposed to create/improve a 

bog garden in each of the Townships to reflect the swamp-like climate and environment of the area when Dippy was alive (150m years ago) and to encourage biodiversity in 

the parks, particularly of some of the creatures who were alive when the dinosaurs existed such as dragonflies, newts and frogs.  Milnrow Memorial Park’s kidney shaped 

bed between the play area and bowling pavilion will be revamped with the removal of some plants, soil improved and new plants. (Project brief at Appendix 4C)

Risk implication None

PF/18/18 Pennines in Bloom 2019

PF/16/18 Milnrow Cricket Club Disabled Access

Project 

Description

Milnrow Cricket Club Pavilion provides tea rooms for members of the public, a meeting space for clubs such as yoga, weightwatchers and karate and venue for parties.  

Disabled access to the pavilion is limited and Milnrow Cricket Club propose to address this problem with construction works that will make the venue totally accessible to all 

and enhance the facilities for members, guests, visiting groups and the local community.  (Application form providing information about the project at Appendix 4D)

Risk implication None

PF/20/18 Pennines Township Floral Displays & Landscaping

Page 2 of 3

P
age 24



Pennines Township Projects Fund 2018/19 - Proposed projects for decision

Ref No Name of Project Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Smallbridge & 

Firgrove

Yes

Place

Libraries Service £3,500

Capital Fund 2018/19 available for allocation = £5,710

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2018/19 - Proposed projects for decision

Ref No Name of Project Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Wardle & West 

Littleborough

Yes

Place

Residents £4,250

Littleborough 

Lakeside

Yes

Place

Resident £4,000

Project 

Description

Fit, Read and Feed 2019 to be delivered by Libraries Service during the summer holidays at Smallbridge Library.  This project aims to improve the physical, mental health 

and wellbeing of local children with the provision of a meal to children during the summer holidays who may not eat when not at school (eg children in receipt of free school 

meals) and fitness and reading activities.  Also increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library services and improve take-up of the Summer Reading 

Challenge. (Project brief at Appendix 4I)

Risk implication Increase in the number of children accessing the provision may change the cost.

PF/22/18 Fit, Read and Feed 2019 - Smallbridge Library

PTC/12/18 Shore Road Waiting Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of additional waiting restrictions along Victoria Street, Wellington Street, Brown Street and Regent Street area, Littleborough.  Vehicles parking on these streets 

are causing access issues for residents, obstructing footways and restricting sight lines around the junctions. (Project brief at Appendix 4K)

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 

additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 

information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee more than five objections received during the 

legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments 

made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Project 

Description

Introduction of waiting restrictions along the southerly side of Shore Road from its junction with Whitelees Road/Calderbrook Road/Hare Hill Road to its junction with St 

Barnabas Drive.  Vehicles parking on the southerly side of Shore Road on the bend (outside properties 1a to 5) are restricting sight lines and obstructing the flow of traffic. 

(Project brief at Appendix 4J)

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 

additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 

information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee more than five objections received during the 

legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments 

made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

PTC/13/18 Victoria Street, Wellington Street, Brown Street and Regent Street Area Waiting 

Restrictions

Page 3 of 3

P
age 25



 

Form PT03 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDDSS  22001188//1199  

AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2019 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Littleborough Food & Drink Sub Committee 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

The Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee was formed after a trial event held in June 2015.  
 
The Food Festival was so popular that a larger scale event was organised in 2016 and the decision to make it an 
annual event led to the 2017 festival. Following the growth and success again the Sub Committee are now seeking to 
organise Littleborough Food & Drink Festival’s fifth event on Saturday 8th June 2019. 
 
The Food Festival Committee is made up of group of local business representatives that have joined together from 
the Pennines Business & Tourism Forum to voluntarily plan and organise this exciting event. They are also well 
supported by Littleborough Events and Associations Forum in terms of organisation and event volunteers. 
 
The aim of Littleborough Food Festival is to support and promote business in Littleborough by encouraging local 
shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs to participate in a community event together to attract visitors into Littleborough. 
 
We aim to celebrate the quality chefs, restaurants and local food and drink producers that exist in Littleborough and 
surrounding nearby areas, providing them with an opportunity to showcase their products to a wider audience 

d) Contact name Neela Jackson  

e) Contact telephone    

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

  
 

 
 

g) Email address  

h) Web address www.littleboroughfoodfestival.co.uk 

 

APPENDIX 4A

Page 26



Form PT03 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016 
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2017 
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2018 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?  Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

Littleborough Food Festival aims to help put Littleborough on the map as a desirable tourist and shopping 
destination by attracting people to attend an appealing family friendly event and in turn they will explore what 
the area has to offer in terms of cafes, restaurants, shops etc. 

The Festival will take place on Saturday 8th June 2019, 11am until 4pm. The venue will be a mix of outdoor stalls 
and indoor shop / community premises. We will celebrate food & drink, creating food market with a great 
atmosphere built upon with quality musical entertainment throughout the day. 

Hare Hill Road will form a perfect ‘event hub’ where there will be an area for musical entertainment, seating 
area, and food and drink stalls. There will be a mobile kitchen to host local chef’s cooking demonstrations, 
seating for the public watching the demonstrations, face painters for children and children’s cookery classes will 
also run throughout the day. 

The festival attracts unprecedented large numbers of people to Littleborough and the individual businesses 
taking part and we have found despite unpredictable weather the atmosphere is always buzzing, the stalls and 
individual shops see large numbers of visitors, often ‘selling out’ and the feedback from the public on the whole 
positive. 

Several shops report the event itself results in an immediate increase in footfall and trade on the day, in 
particular the ones who put in the extra effort to get involved and provide an attractive food or shopping offer. 
Feedback from shop owners tells us it also brings repeat business to local shops after the event, for example 
customers discovering shops they didn’t know about  – the ‘food festival’ effect. 

The event attracts a great deal of publicity in the local press in the months leading up to it and afterwards. All this 
helps to bring people into Littleborough and promotes the area as a desirable place to visit and in turn the local 
restaurants and shops benefit hugely. 

The festival aims to bring together local businesses and the community. It is anticipated that by organising the event 

again we will build upon the positivity and good reputation we have established so far and continue to highlight 

Littleborough as a successful shopping and tourist destination within the Rochdale Borough, not only for local people 

but for visitors across the North West and beyond. 

Project start date 1st February 2019 
Project completion 
date 

8th June 2019 

Page 27



 

Form PT03 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £ 6500.00 

b) Amount of grant required £ 1885.64 

c) Amount from other sources £ 4614.36 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

 
Grantscape – Crook Hill Community 
Fund 
 
Local Shops – advertisement fees 
 
Food / Drink Vendors – stall fees 
 
 
 
 
Local Business Sponsorship – TBC 
 
Littleborough Food Festival 

 
Marquees, Generator & Fuel 
 
 
Leaflets  
 
Table & Chair Hire,  
Graphic Design,  
Marketing & Publicity Materials,  
Face Painters, Zumba, 3x Bands. 
 
Website 
 
Insurance, Mobile Stage & PA 

 
May 2018 
 
 
1st March 2019 
 
1st March 2019 
 
 
 
 
1st March 2019 
 
1st March 2019 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required 
(enclose quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
 
Cooking Demonstration Kitchen –supply, erect and supervision 
 
Band 1 
 
 
 
 

 
 

£1385.64 
 

£500.00 
 
 

TOTAL £1885.64 Page 28



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
.volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

• Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

• No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

• Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

• Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Pennines Township Office to make changes. 

• Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office. 

• Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

• Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

• Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature  Signature  

Full name Neela Jackson Full name Julie Pimlott 

Position Sub-Committee Member Position Treasurer  

Date  Date  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

• answered all the relevant questions and 

• enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 922227 
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 29



1/1

Other Information

Littleborough Food Festival

Estimate Event Kitchen
Hire - Littleborough Food &
Drink Festival 2018
10 January 2018

£1,385.64

Quantity Details Unit Price (£) VAT Net Subtotal (£)

Product Event kitchen hire to include 4 ring induction hob,
electric fan oven with grill, under counter fridge, a
selection of chefs equipment, small double sink to
include hand wash, PA system and overhead TV
monitor.

(3x3 gazebo)

1 day hire.

1,125.00 20% 1,125.00

66 Expenses Delivery and collection @ 0.45 pence per mile
(return journey 66 miles)

0.45 20% 29.70

 Net Total 1,154.70

 VAT 230.94

 GBP Total £1,385.64

To supply mobile demonstration kitchen, 4 ring induction hob, fan oven with grill, full PA system,
overhead TV monitor, undercounter fridge with small ice box, small double sink unit to include hand wash
and a selection of chefs equipment.

3 x 3 Gazebo.

Price includes delivery, set-up and collection.

Event Date - Saturday 9 June 2018.
Delivery Date - Saturday 9 June 2018.

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



a0

fl.c
C

—
j

-
.-
Q

4

1
0

—
J

0C’)

Q)ci)
1aa)ci)

1I7

a)
4
-.

>cuE00

d

‘I)

-E

CCuC20C.)

C’,
a)

Cl)
t

E
laCl)

31’c
C.)

U)a)

U)
I

U)
Cu

a
)

0a::..—

0
—

0

C0CCu2’0I
.

0aIa

ji
a)C00
.

a,‘I’U.1!C0C.)
aa)

CCuU,U,C
u

a,

C.,

0
0

0
0
.

C
.

a)ECuC4
dU.5C0C
)a

U
,

U
,

VCuCuELLI
aa,

U,U
,

VVCu

Page 33

Worrall Sharron
Typewritten Text
PF/01/18

Worrall Sharron_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4B



Cl..

II0
.

0
.

U)0a)>U)
=

U)a)a)>a)U
,

U)a)0
.

-
.

U)C0U)a,2U)C)

.I

U)

>LI
a)E0Ua)E0UCa)a,z.0U,

.U)zCCU)I
.

0I
.
-
—

oC0U
)a)

.
t
.

U)a)0
0

U

0>.b
JOUI...

0UzC>
c

I
-
>

a)’..
>

0

C
E

0•
0

”
CU)

.?
C

W
e

0
’
..

U
)>
1a
)’...

.
Q

—
c

.
0

>
1

I..

0

\
0U)a,

>-

Page 34



‘1 z a CD -‘

C•
)

0 0 0 -
‘
I

. -
‘ CD C
,

m x a ..
I. I nfl I

: p
—

c•\
—

?
f
n

U
;.’

—
-
‘

0
-
ç

,

:: r
;L

L
A

-
6’

.
‘

) (_
(j

-
‘0

(‘

-

r
c

L’ 9
F

?-
-

‘P
2 4
5

a CD Er Co 0 0 I.
,

CD I

3 0 C 0 -I
I

-I Co C a

C
, 3 0 C r4
.

-
l 3 2. CD -I 0 0 C CD 0

0 -I r

..
‘

‘
CD

CD
CD

.
0

w
.C

D
.

c .-.
0

-

C
c

I
.*

0
0

0
Cn

Co
C

D

CD

Co

0
.
z

Co
(

t
0

0
-
h

CD
Co

C
D

!°
O 1

o C
D

-J Co

a
C

D
0 C

D

Co CD 3 Co -I
l

C a

-1 0 0 C

-J 0 6 0

C) 0 0 1
*

0 0 ><

-
j 0 c) 0

0 Co Co 0 -I
’

a a CD C
,

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

(1 C
11 0 0

0 6 2

Page 35



SECTION 6- SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s) LI
b) Constitution/governing document
C) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please

confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures LI Yes JN/A

& Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and Ss LI N/A

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7- DECLARATION

We, the undersigned agree to:

. Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.

. No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.

. Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.

. Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.

. Send the invoiceslreceipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.

. Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.

. Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.

. Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant_on_behalf of the_organisation.

Contact Person Organisation Chair or Treasurer
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature —c’- L-’ 1’-.z ‘C-- Signature

Full name C >\ &&-_ Full name

Position Position

Date Date

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the informion requested:

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document
- Bank statemenj(s) ‘V’ - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form V

We will return incomplete application forms.

Please send your completed application form to:
Pennines Township Office, do Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 0L16 1XU
Tel: 01706 922227
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Form PTO2
Page 36

Worrall Sharron_2
Stamp



ç
i

iiSB0

j
3

J
ci

(
2

0

jI

0a—

C
)

c2.

cJ

Page 37



Quotation for Sheriff Street

For work including layi ng pathway leading to
border with pathway surrounding border for
wheelchair access.

Planting perenial plants, and supply of new benchs

For labour all materials and skip hire

£3,970

Page 38



rint Page 2 of 2
To whom it concerns,

have just put some costings together based on what we discussed this morning its coming out at £95.00
er square metre. Now with I 00m2 of flagging and another 20m2 for walkway its coming out at:

120m2 of flagging and walkway @ £95.00 plus vat is this what other builders have quoted you on please
advise.

rotal £11400.00
/at £2280.00
rotal £13680.0

rhanks,

TS

ttachments

• imageool.jpg (7.09 KB)

10/03/2018

Page 39



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Pennines PF/15/18       

Name of Request Originator Ian Trickett 

Project Manager & Ext Michael Buczman 

Completed by Ian Trickett Date Completed 8/1/19 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Dippy dinosaur linked garden 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from Natural History Museum is 

on a national tour.  The aim of the tour is to inspire people to have their 

own ‘natural history adventure’.  Dippy will be visiting Rochdale from 

Feb to June 2020.  Rochdale is the only North West venue on the tour 

and 250,000 people are expected to see him. ‘Dippy on Tour: A Natural 

History Adventure’ is a partnership project between Rochdale Council 

and Link4Life.  Dippy will be on display at Number One Riverside and 

there will be an exhibition at Touchstones as well as associated events 

across all the Townships.  

Our proposal is for the creation / improvement of a bog garden in each 

of the Townships to reflect the swamp-like climate and environment of 

Rochdale when Dippy was alive (150m years ago) and to encourage 

biodiversity in the parks, particularly of some of the creatures who were 

alive when the dinosaurs existed such as dragonflies, newts and frogs.  

Milnrow Memorial Park: revamping kidney shaped bed between Play 
area and bowling pavilion: Strip out some plants, improve soil and plant 
up with £300 new plants 
 
All sites: dinosaur fossils to use for events & activities £200 
 
Potential additional signage and sculpture depending on Dippy Lottery 
bid by L4L 
 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Greater interest in the Dippy project and a long term improvement to an 
existing landscape feature in Milnrow Memorial Park. 
 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Work will be done in house / known contractors so funding required is known  

Risks that may change estimate 

None 

APPENDIX 4C

Page 40



Total Estimated Fees £50 

Total Estimated Works Costs 
£300 plants 
£200 dinosaur fossils 

Total Cost £550 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  02/04/2019 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Plants ordered, unwanted plants stripped out and soil improved 
 
 

Completion Date 06/06/2018 

Evidence 

Planting completed 
 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 8/1/19 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 41



 

Form PT03 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDDSS  22001188//1199  

AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
PF/16/18 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Disabled access to the cricket club pavillion 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Milnrow Cricket Club 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

To provide amateur cricket for all ages. We have three senior teams and five junior teams ranging from 
under 9’s to under18’s which all use our club pavilion and facilities. We have winter and summer coaching 
programmes which include up to 100 youngsters.  
In the pavilion we also provide tea rooms for members of the public and also a space for clubs in the past 
which have included yoga clubs, weightwatchers and karate clubs. As well as a small venue for children’s 
parties and the like. 

d) Contact name Brendan Maguire 

e) Contact telephone   

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

 
 

 

g) Email address  

h) Web address N/A 

 

APPENDIX 4D

Page 42



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

 
PW/13/12 Extra covers (Grant £799 in 2013) 
0910/MN/04 Storage container (Grant £1,600 in 2009) 
89/MN/08 New score board (Grant £488 in 2008) 
78/MN/01 Festival of brass (Grant £3,800 in 2007) 
67/MN/01 Roller for grounds maintenance (Grant £3,581 in 2006) 
56/M&N Refurbish pavilion (Grant £7,738 in 2005) 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

 

 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
We have as a club for some years now have realised that disabled access to our pavilion is limited. Because 

of its elevated position and the awkwardness of the steps leading up to it.  

This means members of the public particularly the disabled find this a real challenge to access the pavilion. 

Also we have lots of visitors in the cricket season members of the public from other clubs and indeed players 

with disabilities who find access to the pavilion almost impossible and have to delegate this task to others to 

enjoy a simple cup of tea.  

This project will bring enormous benefits to the disabled and the infirm to access the pavilion more easily 

and also to access the toilets. Without having to traipse all the way around the ground to the main 

clubhouse. Which is very inconvenient particularly to use a toilet which as we all know is a basic human 

right.  

Project start date March 2019 
Project completion 
date 

April 2019 

Page 43



 

Form PT03 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £ 4,500 

b) Amount of grant required £ 4,500 

c) Amount from other sources £0 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

   

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required 
(enclose quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

Quotes to follow  

TOTAL £4,500 
Page 44



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
.volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Pennines Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature B H Maguire Signature G Buckland 

Full name Brendan Hugh Maguire Full name Geoff Buckland 

Position Vice Chairman/ Secretary Position Chairman 

Date 10/01/2019 Date 10/01/2019 

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 922227 
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 45



Page 46



REF

., ROCHDALE
BOROUGH COUNCil

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.

-~~ ~ .,.~ ~~ - - - -

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
-

a) Name of organisation f~1\.h\J\ .0 c-S \10 ~~OOW\

b) Type o!,.9rganisation
~ D D D D D D

Voluntary! Registered Sports! Limited Private Social Other
community charity leisure club company company enterprise type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

-re; 1--IF-u7) !4wo U6v'E.h.O F l\)~W ~4lV\::)t=-~\~nNG ~tL.."T~bS il-\) ~~
~QS\t-S <0F'~~ P~IU~hlU~IOLUW~ti-\? t'+~ To C-fl.~\~ ~ .~ \4wt) \Q\S~ibRiS."-I H-fS. F-lVVI ReP lA.) '\It I-;U; l

'-V~ ~~~ ~$4t:: F\-\w~· ~ t. - ... - \)
.q.8CUl t5~u~ _ ~~ ~ ,~~l,.nV~1\v\-nv~ \4\'uD R\"\'~II"·((i\I\..l~w<" .-ll.JtlR.\\J~

I>_ . _ lW iN-&:!"OWI.U~ti.~$ . _
W~ t1-t;::(..?" iV r~lOI:; l? ~ s(. ~. _ ..._
ts~_u~ ~I<~ Bj+Lt'\.WL~~ ~~:~~~~;lUUl~"UV\'\6t0"Th-Lv'\LU~ t.VtL()Ur::-t:='

W ~ wc~'" C-L.D -1...1 w ~._- q. ~I:> l.:rr--t~\l1lV~W!s7c~tVc.l)lJk!r-J(;" t4w~ v4-ffR,,:x.: ~-..~"- -- ~~,,,.~ " l"iS ~'f.W~ e.owi\t"'" _ , " , )'f- t I IfDfj1=lrf-l:'
iW~~ ~~8ri _ l~~ilO:O oFVI-~ q.eol-{PS '~.n)o(..i/r;.~iI'l-l-CLU(d.vlllt l-4.lt.!ti~WF

~14- ~ • N4t' ~r.::w\r--\ts btv.e.i"CUI_:U~~L~ "N
\V. lV\{f\il.lDVI5iNq~ - \.lJ _ t ht/Ut ",,-u.Jl.~ "1tl~U\)ltt.It.uIl.ut,.

, i.~~ \ri-I u~~L l-\.<lwU%.:... ' P - ~F-'l./i/lil - ~ r- t4-~IC . u-LCb--- o\-U ~"'l~w"'\ , i N-~

d) Contact name 7A-"IMO~D ~v\\l1T-f
e) Contact telephone

.

f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address (~i5c.Rc·Tt4ft1')

h) Web address

FormPT03

PF/18/18

APPENDIX 4E

Page 47



Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

PF· /i~ 111 Wl~\F-~ t\..~wnl,"",~ I- ~~I:l.'i..~
PF I 15/ tta ~UW\W\ F-R f>ro:s;=<:..i-S f&;....c,,; ~1~
pt l ~,/ I b \.\J*r~q~vE \"",?~v'~.\I\~~ {9.:1..56·
PF I II t 14-. gUW\Wi~ P~.:c1S ~2..99-"-<t:>CO

Pf i ~2::>1 r,. ~ 'M.~1..CCH-\t ROI~ 15000

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council? D Yes ~ No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
or anisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

- ------

SECTION 4 - ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

Project completion
dateProject start date

Form PT03

Page 48



- -

SECTION 5 - PROJECT FINANCES

a) Cost of project £ 4.PIOO· 00
b) Amount of grant required

c) Amount from other sources £ D.
d) Details of other funding : ...•-...-.

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required
(enclose quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be
reQuired for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money).

Expenditure item ~ Cost

TOTAL Ll..'t 00 ~DO

Form PT03

Page 49



c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
.volunteers

OYes

OYes

ON/A

ON/A

SECTION 6 - SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s) 0
b) Constitution/governing document 0

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure o

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION

We, the undersigned agree to:

• Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
• No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
• Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
• Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from

Pennines Township Office to make changes.
• Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed

Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
• Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
• Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale

Council's use of the organisation's name and photographs for promotional purposes.
• Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.

Contact Person Organisation Chair or Treasurer
,.... (Different from Contact Person)

Signature Signature

Full name P~'1W\OWQ~W\\'tti- Full name eft (.2.cC\5' ·1)(-tv\.~

Position aA.\~M\1iw' Position 5~~
Date l3l1 IQptq Date \ 4-\ d '10\,\

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the information requested:

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form

We will return incomplete application forms.

Form PT03

X

X

X

X

X

Page 50



I ~u
..- ..,,;;;'

4{{A-UJ\ - kC1oo·00 .
'O.,-.qL

~OW k~, ~$O'on- 4- o~O·OO

K~DPINct PL~W1':S '\
l+t::.~~ V'}-Lt 0 tbS l. \ J
t.Q.~ ~. 1 ~~O . nn
S~U~5 ) .,

"
,

~ b4-D . 00

v\;\\,,\V~W 10 ~~ e 2£" -= 9.~D
~~\\lffi "I BR.\~t:'1. ~l4lt ~ ~5 'C- t"S
G\VvtL- ~, ._3($ ~s, 2.5 ;:.. 1S
tJA~DLF- \ .D... ~44S, '15 ~~lOO
W~~Q.\)F- ~ l$fllis, '2. ~ -- ~OD- 1000

~ 1- J~T~% I
~OO

D Lt QQO l~VO ·00
., f1 l 4-40 . OD,......

~ kS~ v"l;'~'I o\\JL.~V.
f': t G2..- h~R(,.~ Rocv{s (b J~(90h...

Vf)\ 'iJ..o% V 4'0 ~Ll.-O·•..... 'I- J 00r -j

J-l~OO~(OD..
I

I

Wl\i-ClilW~ ti\ Rt=- f

3 D t4-'1S @ ~OO.:r/-f9()tJ
1- v~l I r '2..0

!', J-'1~O .,{cu..o . <CO
'-' :f 4.!b ri- 00

1'\
,,_ ..r- l/:l_ /•••. -_ J I ,..,
L.UlV , "'V~ PIV~I p-~ I I-·L.,:~U

, \

Page 51



~ g~ ,[;Rc.J I4teD , .//OI'9L DUG+iT
I-~~D· OD

I rVFOR.11'1i<+\iot.U ~Ot~{zD

~A-'f ]~SV

"t- J~\~ J dO .
l~oo I 600' 00~

V f---t $O~ 00
I

I CJ:)D ~ 00 LE.y,
()

--- ~.>:-:
I1-c~ Qu...o~ c-",, __ LonlnCT\~ 1'0 ..c,lilo-v..l

'-' I .....,

.

0

o

,

Page 52



Quotation

Date 14/01/2019

Quote No 16

Quote To

Pennines In Bloom

Quote Ref RAY SMITH

Phone No. Fax No.

Total

Subtotal

VAT Total

Mobile No.

Bank account details for BACS payments:

                           
        

                

DescriptionQty Rate Amount VAT

BULK BAGS OF GRADE TWO TOP SOIL40 25.00 1,000.00 S

£1,200.00

£1,000.00

£200.00

Page 53



Page 54



::::.;:;.:.:4=--r~"""""'" .

D . . J.':..../, 1.1.1 .
M !..mn.lfl.eS ..~ jf) Z/Q;)r.0. .

......................................................·······························;;;,;.;·····•.•••···----·4····,;;,;,;,;··;;,;,:.:: .

...........................................................~=~.:~ .

Page 55



ROCHDAlE
BOROUGH COUNCil

Date:11/1/19

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Mark Widdup
Service Director Operational Services

Green Lane, Heywood
Lancs OL 10 2DY

Hello Ray,

The total price for your bedding for Pennines in Bloom for summer 2019 is £880
( which includes your 20% discount ).

Leslie Masters.

Bowlee Garden Nursery,

"Working towards a cleaner, greener environment"

Page 56



-ro -----t (l..A--NS P(I/L1 IZ
i \ I,

C "-l. f S 'I S~r(OAG) 'Fllo ~Pl

l"t ..( i.:7-rLC Do Il ~ut i«, } 2 Lt 0 c.

Page 57



Wardle

I~
Es'T( MA-r~

Date ..1:£::..1.:::.../.J .

To ..kX~ft.0 ..t\r..~ 4.~1) {\..,;.~9..~.~ s..l?.~~.b~:-§ t~.~.:rf:~\'AI...
.•...r- RD IM. A.~(;::Ii\~ {il\.. t-1-r-rL~~D ~o 0 <;;.~ Av0.:n ~ j/-\.~-n-'{~~~~ <:t£.

Bare J g h........... f\~ I 1~ -c' Q..." C'\"E..:Q

Tot.;J...6.9.9 .

Page 58



  

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Pennines             

Name of Request Originator Ian Trickett 

Project Manager & Ext Ian Trickett / Tracy Hibbert 

Completed by Ian Trickett Date Completed 16/1/19 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Pennines Grass Verges 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Making permanent and expanding the trial of flower seed areas on 
verges.  Existing annual flower seed displays have been very popular 
with public but are costly to maintain.  This is to move to a cheaper 
perennial flower seed mix that will only need intervention every 4 years 
or so to ensure quality of display rather than seeding from scratch 
every single year, which is very costly.   
 
Use of low growing and single species mix for visual impact where 
bordering road edge, other areas more general seed mix 

   
 
Possible locations: 

 Replacing the annual flower seed mix Wildhouse Lane which we 
no longer have funds to do every year with a perennial seed mix 

 Creating new perennial seed mix areas to replace grass plots 
along Birch Road to Wardle, pictured below 

 
 
Costs to weed spray, prepare for seed, seed and roll the above £6,800   
Management fees at 10% £680 
Maintenance fees: nil, EM to pick up maintenance 
 
f there are insufficient Township funds for both sites but Township want 
to fund some of the works, revamping Wildhouse Lane on its own costs 
£2,970 including management fees 
 

APPENDIX 4F

PF/19/18

Page 59



Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Reduce grass verge maintenance, flower in summer, promotes wildlife, 
reduces grass verge maintenance requirement 

Township Priorities Met  

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Select source of funding 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Cost of contractor work 

Risks that may change estimate 

None – contractor estimate provided 

Total Estimated Fees £680 

Total Estimated Works Costs £6,800 

Total Cost £7,480 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  1/3/19 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Seed ordered, contracts let 

Completion Date 1/5/19 

Evidence 

Work completed on site 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 16/1/19 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Place

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx   Township Revenue

Page 60



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Pennines PF/20/18       

Name of Request Originator Ian Trickett 

Project Manager & Ext Ian Trickett / Tracy Hibbert 

Completed by Ian Trickett Date Completed 16/1/19 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Various In Bloom schemes need just a little investment to add the icing 
on the cake.  Township are requested to top up the considerable 
investment EM Services and Pennines Township have already put into 
the following schemes to bring them to completion: 
 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Ongoing revamping floral schemes / landscaping various sites: 

 Albert Royd roundabout gapping up planting £150 

 Milnrow Dalton Ave replace plants that perished in last year’s 
drought £400 

 Milnrow Memorial Park topping up planting various £800 

 Planters Littleborough, Milnrow, Newhey various £200 

 Wardle Green, renovate and install heritage agricultural 
machine £600  

Management fees at 10% £215 
Maintenance fees: nil, EM to pick up maintenance 
 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Add icing on the cake to existing floral schemes 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Cost of contractor work 
 

Risks that may change estimate 

None – contractor estimate provided 
 

Total Estimated Fees £215 

Total Estimated Works Costs £2,150 

Total Cost £2,365 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

APPENDIX 4G

Page 61



 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  1/3/19 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Contractor work ordered and plants ordered 
 

Completion Date 1/5/19 

Evidence 

Work completed on site 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 16/1/19 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 62



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Pennines PF/21/18       

Name of Request Originator Ian Trickett 

Project Manager & Ext Ian Trickett / Tracy Hibbert 

Completed by Ian Trickett Date Completed 18/1/19 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Hare Hill Park annual flower beds revamp 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

The 4 existing rectangular beds from bandstand to water fountain are in 
desperate need of a revamp as they are looking very tired, boring 
shape, prone to flooding which kills the plants.  These let down the rest 
of the park rather than being a beautiful feature that leads the eye from 
bandstand to water fountain.  Maintaining the existing would be EM but 
a major revamp we are asking for financial assistance from Township. 
 

 Replace four existing boring rectangles a single larger bed in 
flowing shape either side of path 

 Import substantial amount soil / manure to mound up the beds  

 Install 4 wood sculpture features 

 Plant structural foliage interest planting that will define the beds 
and provide backdrop for annual bedding (amount of annual 
bedding will remain the same but the overall visual impact will 
be improved) 

 
Capital costs £5,500 
Management fees at 10% £550 
Maintenance fees: £400 in case of vandalism to wood sculptures or 
replacement structural plants if any fail to take etc. EM to pick up 
maintenance because it is an existing floral feature to staffed park 
 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Improves appearance of floral display but without additional long term 
revenue costs 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Cost of contractor work 
 

Risks that may change estimate 

None – contractor estimate provided 
 

APPENDIX 4H

Page 63



Total Estimated Fees £950 

Total Estimated Works Costs £5,500 

Total Cost £6,450 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  1/3/19 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Contractor work ordered and plants ordered 
 

Completion Date 1/5/19 

Evidence 

Work completed on site 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 18/1/19 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 64



 

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  

CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM  
 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Pennines PF/22/18       

Name of Request Originator Councillor Blundell 

Project Manager & Ext Vicky Clarke  Ext 4877 

Completed by Vicky Clarke Date Completed 30.10.18 

AA..    DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE  

Scheme Name & Location Fit, Read and Feed , Smallbridge  Library Summer Holidays 2019 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To provide a meal to children during the summer holidays for children 
who may not eat when not at school (e.g. in receipt of Free School 
Meals) and also to provide physical and mental health and wellbeing by 
providing fitness and reading throughout the school holidays. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

 Encourage reading and engagement with Smallbridge Library 

 Encourage the take-up of the Summer Reading Challenge, with 
more children starting and completing the challenge than in 
2018. 

 Increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library 
services. 

 Provide for those in need without attaching any stigma. 

 Continue to build upon the success achieved during the Read 
and Feed projects during 2016, 2017 and 2018. 

 
 

Township Priorities Met People 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

 

BB..    EESSTTIIMMAATTEE  

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Estimated up to 30 children will be catered for daily. 
Approximately 500 lunches will be provided over the 6 week holidays 

Risks that may change estimate 

Increase in the number of children accessing the provision. 
 
 

Total Estimated Fees £3500.00 

Total Estimated Works Costs £ 

Total Cost £3500.00 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code D0510/3546 

APPENDIX 4I

Page 65



 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  Monday 29th July 2019 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 
Video made during Fit Feed Read 18 to follow. 

Completion Date 30.10.19 

Evidence 

 
Evaluation event and report 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

 

KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 

 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 

 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 66



r$: ROCHDALE
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Township Ref Service Ref

Township Pennines I I HP-001819

Name of Request Originator Residents

Project Manager & Ext Nathan McKendrey

Completed by Emma Hartley Date Completed 18101/2019

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME

Scheme Name & Location Waiting Restrictions to be introduced along the southerly side of Shore
Road from its junction with Whitelees Road/ Calderbrook Road/ Hare
Hill Road to its junction with St Barnabass Drive.

Scheme Description (include It has been reported that vehicles parking on the southerly side of
as much information as Shore Road on the bend (outside property numbers la — 5) are
possible) restricting site lines and causing an obstruction to the flow of traffic.

It is established that vehicles park on the northerly side which currently
leaves sufficient width for traffic to flow in both directions.
Parking is now being reported along both sides which significantly
reduces the width of the carriageway causing an obstruction to traffic
flows and dangerously reducing site lines around the bend.

In Oct 2018 the committee approved funding to introduce waiting
restrictions at the junction of Shore Road and Shore Mount
(PTC/09/1 8) for the value of £4000.
If Township wish the two proposals could be combined into one
scheme, reducing the estimate of this application to £1000.

Therefore both schemes could be introduced for a total of £5000

Scheme comments from Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the
Highways safe and efficient movement of traffic.

Advertising of restrictions may result in objections being received.

Desired Outcome (what is Introduction of waiting restrictions along the southerly side of Shore
F required by the scheme) Road will prevent indiscriminately parked vehicles restricting sight lines

around the bend and causing an obstruction to flowing traffic thus
improving the safe and efficient movement of traffic in this location.

Township Priorities Met

Land Owner Rochdale Council

Public Consultation Yes

Proposed Source of Funding Select source of funding

B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

• There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

• The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.

• The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND

COMMISSIONING FORM (2017118)

PTC/12/18

Place

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx   Township Capital

APPENDIX 4J

Page 67



. To deal with objections may increase the cost.

. This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate
. Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its

development will result in additional costs.
. The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or

TfGM.
. Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Total Estimated Fees £3500

Total Estimated Works Costs £750

**Total Cost £4250
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

Amount Approved by Township Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES

Estimated Start Date To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)

Evidence

. A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.

. It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.

. Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

. Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
Completion Date commencement of design.

Evidence

. A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.

. It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.

. Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Commiftee

Date Committee Approved Scheme

SignatureofHeadofSeNice Date

Signature of Townships & Date
Communities Manager

Signature of Township Chair Date

Page 68



E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria
Improve Safety

Accessibility Accident Reduction

Condition Reduce Congestion
Township Priority Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.

KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by ServicelProvider after discussion with the Township Office

To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 69



B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

. There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

•
. The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.

. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

. To deal with objections may increase the cost.

. This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee

Township

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND

COMMISSIONING FORM (2017118)

Pennines

L4. ROCH DALE
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Project Manager & Ext

Completed by

Township Ref Service Ref

Name of Request Originator Resident

Nathan McKendrey

Scheme Name & Location

NMSG
002491

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME

Emma Hartley Date Completed 18/01/2019

Review existing and introduce additional waiting restrictions along
Victoria Street, Wellington Street, Brown Street and Regent Street
area, Littleborough.

Scheme Description (include It has been reported that vehicles are parking in an indiscriminate
as much information as manner in the areas around Victoria Street, Wellington Street, Brown
possible) Street and Regent Street causing access issues for residents and

causing a hazard for other users of the highway by obstructing
footways and sight lines especially around the junctions.

There is a significant demand for parking in these locations not only by
residents but also by businesses and customers visiting Littleborough
Centre. Similar to many areas of this nature, there are more cars than
available space which often results in indiscriminate parking.

It is recommended that a review of the existing waiting restrictions is
carried out to determine if the current restrictions are effective and if
additional waiting restrictions should be introduced to improve the
current issues.

Scheme comments from Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the
Highways safe and efficient movement of traffic including pedestrians.

Advertising of restrictions may result in objections being received.

Desired Outcome (what is Increasing waiting restrictions along sections of these areas will
required by the scheme) improve safety for all users of the highway by clearing sight lines

around junctions and prevent obstruction to residents property, shared
use areas and footways.

Township Priorities Met

Land Owner Rochdale Council

Public Consultation Yes

Proposed Source of Funding Select source of funding

PTC/13/18

Place

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx   Township Capital

APPENDIX 4K

Page 70



resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate
. Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its

development will result in additional costs.
. The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or

TfGM.
. Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.

Total Estimated Fees £3500

Total Estimated Works Costs £500

**Total Cost £4000
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

Amount Approved by Township Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES

Estimated Start Date To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)

Evidence

. A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.

. It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission.

. Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

. Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
Completion Date commencement of design.

Evidence
•

. A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.

. It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.

. Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee

Date Committee Approved Scheme

Signature of Head of Service Date L 1c j 19
Signature of Townships & Date
Communities Manager

Signature of Township Chair Date

E. BENEFITSIOUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria
Improve Safety I

Accessibility Accident Reduction I
Condition Reduce Congestion
Township Priority Improve Network I

Page 71



 

Form PT02 

1 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001188//1199 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Pennines Township’s vision is to create sustainable urban and semi-rural communities in our Township 
where people feel safe and have a sense of community and belonging.  We want the local community to have 
access to appropriate housing, employment, leisure and community facilities, and proper social and family 
support. 
 
Pennines Township funds can be used to offer support to projects and organisations that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of the Pennines area.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, 
third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects on relevant application forms for funding from 
Pennines Township Funds. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Pennines Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 
communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work 
and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, 
fencing, lights, CCTV, etc. 

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 

i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognises the contribution made by the Township. 

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting 

body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces 
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 
community benefit or Pennines Township is responsible for the maintenance of the land. 

d) Alterations to land solely for parking provision.  Rochdale Council does not have a statutory duty to 
provide parking on residential streets.  Being able to park close to a property is viewed as a privilege 
as no person has the right to park on the Highway.  Removal of permeable surfaces such as grass 
verges increases surface water run-off.  Whilst removing verges in isolated locations will have a small 
impact, the accumulative effect on the drainage network will be noticeable and increase the risk of 
surface water flooding over time. 

e) Promoting religious or political causes. 

f) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 
functions. 

APPENDIX 5

Page 72



 

Form PT02 

2 

g) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 

h) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 

i) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

j) Parties/day trips out. 

k) Purchase of alcohol. 

l) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

m) Purchasing or hiring of vehicles. 
n) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 
Pennines Township priorities (see section 1). 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 
account. 

d) Applicants will be required to attend the committee considering their grant application to respond to 
questions to aid the decision making process.  Failure to attend the committee will result in the 
application being deferred to a future meeting. 

e) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 
made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated and 
Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

f) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

g) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

h) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

i) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land. 

j) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

k) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

l) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 
by Township Funds. 

m) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

n) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

o) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Pennines Township Office within 
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

p) Applicants will be required to participate in any press or media related activities relating to the grant. 

q) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Pennines Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources. 

r) Community/voluntary organisations are limited to one Pennines Township grant in any two consecutive 
financial years.  Community wide annual events in the Pennines Township may be considered for 
funding at the discretion of Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

s) Community/voluntary organisations are limited to a maximum grant amount of £2,000 in any two  

Page 73



 

Form PT02 

3 

consecutive financial years with the exception of applications that will provide a wider economic benefit. 

t) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

5. Decision Making Process 
 

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and 
conditions of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 
the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 
requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 
or less. 

f) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their 
support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

g) Any disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

h) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee meeting. 

i) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 
not been re-elected. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 
and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 
provider and the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee prior to incurring any 
additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 
the change, i.e. time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc. and additional costs, and agree the 
variations with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 
the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to 
accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 
Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 
payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, 
withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 
unless agreed otherwise with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 
Page 74


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Objections to Traffic Order - Union Road, Dearnley
	7 Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 1 - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 2 - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 3 - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4 - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4A - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4B - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4C - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4D - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4E - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4F - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4G - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4H - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4I - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4J - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 4K - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19
	Appendix 5 - Pennines Township Funds 2018/19




